
 

City of Billings Zoning Commission  

Meeting Minutes January 3, 2023 
 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes January 3, 2023 - Draft 

Page 1 of 15 
 

The City of Billings Zoning Commission met on Tuesday, January 3, 2023 at 4:30 p.m., 2825 3rd Ave 

North, 1st floor conference room of the Miller Building.  The public may attend in person or watch the 

meeting live on Facebook (see below). The Public may call in during specific Public Comment periods at 

(406) 237-6165. All callers will be in a queued system and are asked to remain on hold and be patient. Calls 

will be taken in the order they are received. Callers will be restricted to 3 minutes of testimony as is 

customary.  Comments may be sent to Board via email before 1:00 PM on Tuesday, November 1, 2022. 

All e-mails received prior to this time will become part of the record for the public hearing. Live coverage 

can be viewed on the City of Billings Facebook page here; https://tinyurl.com/yckr478k  

 

The City Council has designated January 23, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. as the date and time to receive 

the Zoning Commission recommendation for the Special Review and hold a public hearing.  

 

The City Council has designated February 13, 2023, at 5:30 p.m. as the date and time to receive 

the Zoning Commission recommendation for the Zone Change and hold a public hearing The 

Council will conduct a public hearing for the first reading of the ordinance on February 13, 

2023.  If approved on first reading, a second reading will occur on February 27, 2023 at 5:30 

pm.  
 

Commission and Staff 

0
1
/0

3
/2

0
2
3
 

0
2
/0

7
/2

0
2

3

3
 

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
2
3
 

0
4
/0

4
/2

0
2
3
 

0
5
/0

2
/2

0
2
3
 

0
6
/0

6
/2

0
2

3
 

0
7
/0

5
/2

0
2

3
 

0
8
/0

1
/2

0
2
3
 

0
9
/0

5
/2

0
2
3
 

1
0
/0

3
/2

0
2

3
 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
2

3
 

1
2
/0

5
/2

0
2

3
 

Mike Larson Chairman 1            

Daniel J. Brooks  Commissioner E            

Greg McCall Vice Chairman E            

Trina White Commissioner 1            

David Goss Commissioner 1            

Wyeth Friday Director, PCSD - - - - - - - - - - -  

Monica Plecker Division Planning Manager - - - - - - - - - - -  

Nicole Cromwell Zoning Coordinator 1            

Tammy Deines Planning Clerk -            

Dave Green Planner II -            

Karen Husman Planner I -            

Robbin Bartley Administrative Support 1            

https://tinyurl.com/yckr478k


 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 2 of 15 
 

 

Total Number of 

2022 

Applications 

0
1
/0

3
/2

0
2
3
 

0
2
/0

7
/2

0
2
3

 

0
3
/0

7
/2

0
2
3

 

0
4
/0

4
/2

0
2
3

 

0
5
/0

2
/2

0
2
3

 

0
6
/0

6
/2

0
2
3

 

0
7
/0

5
/2

0
2
3

 

0
8
/0

1
/2

0
2
3

 

0
9
/0

5
/2

0
2
3

 

1
0
/0

3
/2

0
2
3

 

1
1
/0

7
/2

0
2
3

 

1
2
/0

5
/2

0
2
3

 T

O

T

A

L 

Zone Change 1            1 

Special Review 1            1 

Chair Larson introduced the Planning Division Staff and Commission: Attending Staff were Nicole 

Cromwell, Zoning Coordinator and Robbin Bartley, Administrative Assistant. 

 

*RETURNING AGENDA ITEM. 

 

Attending:  

 

Chair Larson called the meeting to order at 4:31 pm.  

 

Public Comment 

Chair Larson called for public comments. There were no public comments. Chair Larson closed the 

public comment portion of the meeting.   

 

Approval of Minutes:  

Motion by Commissioner Goss and seconded by Commissioner White to approve the 

November 1, 2022 meeting minutes with correction.   

 

Disclosure of Conflict of Interest 

COMMISSIONER DISCLOSED NONE   ABSTAINED     ABSENT 

Mike Larson  x   

Daniel J. Brooks    x 

David Goss  x   

Greg McCall    x 

Trina White  x   

 

 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 3 of 15 
 

Disclosure of Outside Communication     

COMMISSIONER DISCLOSED NONE   ABSTAINED     ABSENT 

Mike Larson  x   

Daniel J. Brooks    x 

David Goss  x   

Greg McCall    x 

Trina White  x   

Commissioners White and Goss visited Special Review 995 and Zone Change 1021 locations. 

 

Public Hearings:  

 

City Special Review 995 – Blue Creek Rd & Santiago Blvd – Request for Car Wash – A 

special review request to allow a carwash facility in a Corridor Mixed Use 1 (CMU1) zone on Lot 1 

of Blue Creek Storage Subdivision a .917 acre parcel of land. The applicant has also included 

requests for variances from the CMU1 Site and Structure regulations in Table 27-400-3 including: 

(A.1) Build-To Corner, (A.3) Minimum Front Lot Line coverage, (A.4 & A.5) Front and Street-

Side Build-to Ranges, (B.8) Parking location, (D.16) Window and Door requirements, and (D.18) 

Number of Entries on the Front façade; Sec. 27-1005 (Q.1) Carwash bay doors on the front façade, 

(Q.3.b) location of open air vacuuming facility in the front or street-side yard. A pre-application 

neighborhood meeting was held on November 21, 2022. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning staff is recommending approval and adoption of the proposed findings of the 9 criteria for 

Special Review 995. 

 

❑ Special Review Uses are “special exceptions” in the zone district – not allowed uses 

❑ Proof of compatibility of the Special Review Use rests with the applicant 

❑ Nine Review Criteria 

1. Consistent with the City’s growth policy  

2. Will not endanger the public health, safety, morals, comfort, or general welfare 

3. Site is adequate in size and topography to accommodate the use 

4. Will not be injurious to the use and enjoyment of other property nor diminish and impair 

property values 

5. Will not impede the normal and orderly development od the area 

6. Conditions necessary to protect the public health, safety, and general welfare can be 

established 

7. Site has or will have adequate utilities, access roads, drainage, and/or necessary facilities 

8. Adequate measures taken to provide ingress and egress 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 4 of 15 
 

9. The special review use shall, in all other respects, conform to the applicable regulations or as 

modified by the City Council 

 

➢ 1. Approval is for operation of a carwash with 2 auto wash bays and 4 self-service 

wash bays, 5 outdoor vacuuming stalls on this lot. 

➢ 2. Substantial conformance with submitted site plan – operational hours from 5 am 

to 10 pm daily.  

➢ 3. Building design and elevations as shown on the architectural drawings.  

➢  4. Site obscuring wall on the north and southeast property line as shown on plan 

sheet. Materials will be a masonry wall or facsimile of masonry (Rhino Rock) and 

will use earth tones. Wood, vinyl and chain link not allowed for this wall location. 

Proposed sight obscuring fence on south property line may be wood or matte-finish 

vinyl. 

➢ 5. Install required number of street trees along the inside of new sidewalk on 

Santiago Blvd. Deciduous trees that will not impeded existing or future 

infrastructure. Shielding of vacuum stalls on the west property line will be a combo 

of ornamental grasses and shrubs including evergreen shrubs.  

➢ 6. Landscape plan for property will be prepared and stamped by a MT licensed 

landscape architect.  

➢ 7. Site plan submitted for Building permit review will include a snow storage area 

and the location and detail for the trash enclosure.  

➢ 8. All installed landscaping will be maintained and replaced as needed. 

➢ 9. Pavement markings to ensure pedestrian and direction of vehicle travel will be 

provided on the site.  

➢ 10. No internally illuminated fascia is allowed and all lighting on the building will 

have full cut-off shields.  

➢ 11. Max height of parking lot lights will be 15 feet and installed with full cut-off 

shields.   

➢ 12. No exterior attached signs on the building façade that faces east.   

➢ 13. All signs shall comply with code for CMU1 district and any lighted sign will not 

be lit during non-operational hours.  

➢ 14. Submit a building permit within 1 year of approval and complete the project 

within 2 years of building permit issuance.   

➢ 15. Requested variances and modifications of site and building standards for CMU1 

are specifically approve.  

➢ 16. Minor modifications of the site are allowed (10% or less)  

➢ 17. If special review use ceases for 6 consecutive months or more, a new special 

review approval is required to re-establish the use.   

➢ 18. Council reserves the right to re-open the conditional approval if the owner fails 

to respond to a notice of non-compliance with conditions of approval within 45 

days. Notice to owner at least 60 days in advance of Council hearing 

➢ 19. Conditions run with the land and are binding on current and future owners.  

➢ 20. Right of building and occupancy permits are contingent on fulfillment of 

conditions of approval.  



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 5 of 15 
 

 
 

 

Discussion. Questions for staff:   

 

 

 

Applicant:  Scott Aspenlieder, PEC 

 

 

 -  

 -  

 - - 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 - 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 - 
 

 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 6 of 15 
 

 

-  
Wash bays.  He stated if there is an open self-service bay, people will pull in but if all the bays are full, those potential 

customers keep going and will not queue and wait. 

 

Questions for applicant:  

 

Public Hearing: 5:20 PM 

Chair Larson opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak in favor or against 

Special Review 995.  

 

In Favor:  

 

Opposed:  

 

Mr. Vanica stated he was concerned with the internal traffic circulation and that it may allow cars 

to queue out onto Santiago Blvd. Mr. Vanica also stated the special review criteria (Criteria 3) 

specifically requires a proposed use to adhere to the zone district requirements. He also was 

confused why the applicant is requesting these variations from the code requirements through the 

special review because the Board of Adjustment normally reviews requests for variances. He stated 

the Commission should recommend denial based on these irregularities in the process as well as the 

internal site circulation issues.  Michele Johnson stated the residents in the area should have the 

biggest input on what goes on this property since they will be the most effected. She stated the 

service is not needed at this location since it is less than a three minute drive to the Holiday station 

car wash on South Billings Blvd. She stated the traffic to and from the car wash will just add more 

confusion to the chaos of traffic on Blue Creek Road. Ms. Johnson stated the comparison of traffic 

on S 32nd St W to Blue Creek Rd by staff does not make sense. She stated the Cedar Park 

Subdivision may have a second access road soon. She stated leaving out first responders from the 

discussion is not wise. She stated the Blue Creek Fire Dept objected to the zone change and  their 

concerns have not been addressed by this application. Cecil Werven stated he is opposed to the 

application because it has access on the local street and not the commercial street - Blue Creek 

Road. He stated the Zoning Commission should not be hearing the application because the zone 

change was denied and Section 27-1611 of the zoning prohibits a subsequent application on the 

same property for one year. Mr. Werven stated he does not believe MDT actually denied the drive 

approach on to Blue Creek Road.  Wendy Stiff stated the City Council made its decision at the zone 

change hearing on a 7-3 vote denying the project. She stated it was not denied based on other uses 

that might be allowed in the CX but by the zone change criteria findings and the proposed use. She 

stated the County's request for a safety study will bring new information to the Zoning Commission 

and would be vital information to have prior to any decision on this project. She stated the project 

does not meet the city's growth policy for infill. The cost burden to the existing residents is too high 

especially the Cedar Park subdivision residents. She stated Zoning Commissioners would be 

opposed if this were located on a corner near their own neighborhoods. She state Mr. Pimley, the 

owner, did reach out to their newly formed Blue Creek Corridor Commission to join and continue a 

dialogue. Mr. Pimley has since stopped communication with our group. Charles Stiff spoke in 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 7 of 15 
 

opposition to the request. He stated the location of this car wash makes as much sense as the new 

Chick-fil-A at Rosebud and 24th St West. He stated all the residents in the room were opposed to 

the special review. He stated the Zoning Commission should not be hearing this application since 

the denial of the zone change happened less than one year ago. He stated developers and 

consultants receive special treatment from staff and Commission. He stated people are tired of the 

rubber-stamping that goes on at the expense of the existing neighborhoods. He stated both the Ward 

3 Council members voted against the zone change. He stated he was concerned the car wash could 

have bottlenecks if people drive in with trailers or RVs. Sherry Danielson stated she has lived in the 

Blue Creek area for 43 years and is opposed to the use of this corner for a car wash. She stated she 

has watched the traffic increase in volume and speed over the years. She stated there are not just 

trash trucks going to landfill anymore. Landfill traffic includes large 18-wheeler side dump rigs as 

well as pick up trucks. She stated the road has about three wrecks a year at Jellison and Blue Creek 

Road and these are not minor fender benders. She stated these crashes take out guardrails and have 

serious injuries. She stated 250 vehicles using this car wash every day will just add to the terrible 

traffic situation on Blue Creek Road. She also stated this owner is not managing or maintaining the 

storage unit property very well. She stated all the trees died that were planted in the front yard and 

was only mowed twice last summer. She does not believe the owner will take care of this property 

any better than the storage units. She stated when the owner needs to ask for seven variances, then 

the Zoning Commission should just deny the request. Heather Haynes stated she was opposed to 

the application. She stated she has lived here for 12 years and is a single mother of four kids. She 

stated the out-of-date MDT traffic study does not include any of the new traffic from all the County 

subdivisions done since 2006. She stated the Assistant Fire Chief for the Blue Creek Fire 

Department asked MDT for a yellow flashing light on Blue Creek Rd when the fire station moved 

out of Cedar Park and onto Blue Creek Rd. MDT denied the requested flashing light. She stated the 

expectation that MDT would make safety improvements is not reasonable. She stated building a 

new sidewalk on the south side of Santiago is useless. She would not let her kids use it when they 

would have to coss Santiago to get to Casey's Corner for the school bus. She stated that queuing of 

cars for the car wash could potentially block Santiago Blvd creating a safety hazard for her 

neighborhood. She stated the landfill traffic is already a problem and this car wash would just add 

to that issue. She stated none of the residents in the area need a car wash. Jim Danielson stated he is 

very concerned about more water getting on Santiago Blvd in the winter. He stated it is already a 

problem just from the water filling stations on the north side of Santiago. Gregg Morgan stated he 

probably lives closest to the new car wash property. He stated the applicant has worked to address 

his concerns. He is not opposed per se and will probably use the car wash when it is built. He stated 

he is concerned about what use could be allowed by right if this project is denied. He was 

concerned the alternatives might be worse for the area than the proposed car wash. Terry 

Henneberry stated he has lived in the area for over 40 years. He state the owner should have 

considered connecting this property with the storage unit property before now. He stated the wait 

time to get our of Cedar Park onto Blue Creek Rd is longer morning and evening. He stated he was 

not concerned with the vacuum noise because it is the blower noise that is more powerful. He stated 

he works up at the airport and the building he has to go into requires a secure entry with an 

intercom. He stated when the rental car automatic car wash went in about 300 feet away, when the 

blowers are on, he cannot hear anything on the intercom at the secure door. He stated the use of 

Santiago Blvd - a local street - for the driveway to the car wash is not right. The street is not a 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 8 of 15 
 

commercial street. He stated he thinks the owner is trying to squeeze too much on the property 

without regard to its effect on other people.  

 

Rebuttal: 

Mr. Aspenlieder provided rebuttal and clarification on the application. He stated there is no way his 

consulting firm or his clients get special treatment. He stated in the last 10 years representing 

clients in the city, he has received negative recommendations from staff, from the City Zoning 

Commission and the City Council. He stated the staff and the public boards all do a great job 

evaluating projects to make sure they don't impact residents and further the goals of the community. 

He stated there are some neighbors who are satisfied with work they have done over the last few 

months to change the overall site plan and iron out issues. Those residents are not here tonight. He 

stated the issue over the number of students using Casey's Corner for a bus stop is a 

misrepresentation of my statement. The four students I noted are come down Santiago Blvd. School 

District 2 picks up 22 students total from Casey's Corner and only four come from the Cedar Park 

neighborhood. 

 

 

Public Hearing closed at 5:59 PM 
 

Discussion: 

 

Commissioner Goss stated he was a no vote when this was a Zone Change request.  He believes the 

process would allow a special review and that Zone Changes are a last resort. 

 

Commissioner White is empathetic to the citizens concerns. 

 

Motion 

Commissioner Goss made a motion and Commissioner White seconded the motion to approve 

Special Review 995 with staff findings, recommendation and conditions. 

COMMISSIONER          Yes No   ABSTAINED     ABSENT 

Mike Larson x    

Daniel J. Brooks    x 

David Goss x    

Greg McCall    x 

Trina White x    

The Motion passed to approve Special Review 995 with a 3-0 vote.  

 

City Zone Change 1021 – Vista West – PND – A zone change request from Agriculture (A – 

County) to Neighborhood 1 (N1), Mixed Residential 2 and 3 (NX2-NX3) and Public 1 (P1) on 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 9 of 15 
 

Tract 1 and 2 of C/S 2828 and the adjacent drain right-of-way, a 27.7 acre parcel of land generally 

located north of Rocky Vista Way, west of Shiloh Rd and south of Bell Avenue. There is a 

concurrent petition for annexation. A pre-application neighborhood meeting was held on October 

25, 2022. 

 

Staff Recommendation: 
Planning staff is recommending approval and adoption of the proposed findings of the 10 criteria for 

Zone Change 1021.  Planning staff recommends approval of the zone change to N1, NX2, NX3 and P1. 

 

New Zoning Tool to allow more efficient land use decisions 

➢ Concurrent with annexation 

➢ Applies to all requests of >= 10 acres 

➢ Helps build new neighborhoods that are walkable, sociable and resilient (BMCC 27-

801.A) 

➢ Allows phasing of annexation but adoption of full zoning plan in advance 

➢ Provides more detail on new neighborhood infrastructure (streets/roads)   

➢ Re-submittal of Zone Change 1004 – withdrawn in Feb 2022 

➢ Applicant is requesting variance from Sec. 27-804.C requiring connectivity to existing 

streets (Bell Ave and Obie Lane)  

➢ Staff is not recommending approval of the variance 

➢ Zoning meets the Growth Policy and West Billings Neighborhood Plan  

➢ Adjacent uses and zoning compatible with proposed zoning plan 

➢ Meets the PND zone district standards for zoning district assembly, and compatibility with 

existing zoning 

 

Discussion. Questions for staff:   

 
-  

-  

-  

 
 

 
 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 10 of 15 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 
 

- 
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 11 of 15 
 

 
 

 -  

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

-  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

concern from these neighbors that people from this new development would wander through the subdivision. 

Mr. Leuthold stated the connection was eliminated in response to their concerns. Mr. Steve Zeier of Trinity Real 

Estate stated he was in favor of the zone change. He stated he has no relationship with the developer or the 

agent but was here to support this type of zoning for the area. He stated as our city has grown, the 

development of new housing of any type has lagged behind. He stated the one area where we can make a 

difference in housing costs is in local regulations and by allowing this mixture of zoning to  help build housing 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 12 of 15 
 

choices. He also stated his desire to  see the  new code implemented consistently and fairly across the board.  

Terry Kaufman of Twin Pines  testified in opposition. She stated the number of dwelling units - 582 - was too 

many for this 27 acre parcel of land. She stated the answer to the lack of housing is not just a quantity issue -- it 

also is a quality issue. She stated there were 4,000 jobs available in Billings recently. Even if every job was 

taken, there would still be enough apartments for everyone who wants one. She stated the City Council has 

approved zoning or development of over 2,000 apartments in the last year. She asked whether the City Council 

or staff has a plan for when all these apartments go vacant when demand subsides. She stated the amount of 

parking required would be too much for this property to accommodate. Toby Erickson of Legends West spoke 

in opposition to the zone change. He stated the homeowners in the adjacent subdivisions could not hope to  

compete with the slick presentation  by the developer. He stated he was testifying on behalf of many owners in 

the adjacent Twin Pines and Legends West subdivision and would appreciate more than three minutes to 

present his arguments. Chairman Larson allowed Mr. Erickson 15 more minutes than the usual three minutes. 

He stated the first mention of multifamily development on the property was 10 year ago and that application 

was withdrawn. At the time, there was no possibility of physically connecting the development  to  the south, so 

the only connections was to Bell Ave and Obie Lane. Last year, the applicant came in with a development of 

mostly 4-story apartment buildings, and no transitional zoning across Bell Ave from Bell Estates. He stated the 

current proposal has a few more things going for it, but the density is still too high. He stated one row of 

developed lots with similar dwellings to Twin Pines and Legends West is not enough. He stated it should be 

much more. He stated the existing city infrastructure cannot support an additional 582 dwelling units in this 

area. He stated everyone in  the room opposes the zone change. He stated there is not enough consideration 

for the neighbors. He stated the development plan may tick many  boxes, but the development  just does not  fit  

with the adjacent area. He stated the higher the density, the fewer people tend to  care about their  

surroundings  or their neighbors. He stated Bell Avenue is an incomplete street, and it would not be right to put 

any of the new traffic on Bell Avenue. He stated  the existing Bell Ave intersection  is deficient  and  only allow a 

right turn (south bound)  on Shiloh Road. Anyone wanting to  go north or east will drive  through Legends West, 

or even Twin Pines or Bonaventure to  reach Central Avenue. This puts a traffic burden on our streets we 

should not have to endure. He stated there is already a good mix of development styles and housing choices in 

the area and does not see the need to add more apartments. He questioned whether West Billings will be 

nothing but apartments from now on. He stated apartment  developments  are not as fire-safe as less dense 

neighborhoods. He stated there will be significant impacts on schools and there will be hgiher incidence of 

crime. He stated these are just results of a higher population - not that people living in apartments are more 

prone to crime. He stated this will be a negative impact  on all types of  transportation in the area and there is 

no benefit to connecting this development  to  Obie Lane - even a pedestrian connection does not make sense 

for Obie Lane. He stated Obie Lane has no sidewalks so adding pedestrians to this street will jsut increase the 

possibility of car/pedestrian conflicts. He stated Twin Pines is a private development 

and if this development is connected to Bell Ave, those residents will petition to gate the streets 

where they connect with Central Ave and Bell Ave. He stated this would not be as safe for these residents if they 

had to gate their own streets. Legends West is all public streets and connects to Bell Ave - also a public street. It 

would be unfair to place this cost on existing residents. He stated leaving 
 

 
 

 

 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 13 of 15 
 

 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 

-  

 - 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

-  

 
 

 
 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 14 of 15 
 

 -  
 

 

-  

-  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

-  
 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

 -  

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

 - 

 -  

 

 -  - 

 
 

 

 
 

 

 
 

  - 
 



 

  City of Billings Zoning Commission  
 

 

City Zoning Commission 

Minutes-January 3 - Draft 

Page 15 of 15 
 

 
 

 
 

 
 

- 

 
 

Public Hearing:7:10 PM 

Chair Larson opened the public hearing and called for anyone wishing to speak in favor or against 

City Zone Change 1021.  

 

In Favor: Steve Zier 

 

Opposed: As listed above 

 

Public Hearing closed at 7:49PM 
 

Discussion: 

 

Motion 

Commissioner Larson made a motion and Commissioner Goss seconded the motion to 

approve City Zone Change 1021 with staff findings and approve the variances requested. 

COMMISSIONER          Yes No   ABSTAINED     ABSENT 

Mike Larson x    

Daniel J. Brooks    x 

David Goss x    

Greg McCall     

Trina White  x   

The Motion passed to approve City Zone Change 1021 with a 2-1 vote.  

 

Other Business: 

 

Adjournment:  The meeting adjourned at 8:15 PM.  

 

ATTEST: To be Approved by a motion at the next regularly scheduled meeting. 

--Robbin Bartley, Administrative Assistant 

  


